
IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT      

FOR THE EASTERN DISTRICT OF PENNSYLVANIA

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA    :       CRIMINAL NO: _________________

v.    :       DATE FILED:     _________________

GEORGE ATIYEH    :       VIOLATIONS:   18 U.S.C. § 371             
            (Conspiracy - 1 Count)         

   :               18 U.S.C. § 1955 
                              (Illegal Gambling Business-

                        :     1 Count)   
                                                                 18 U.S.C. § 1084 

   :                                       (Transmission  of Wagering            
                                                     Information - 5 Counts)
   :            18 U.S.C. § 1956(h)
                              (Money Laundering Conspiracy -
   :                            1 count)
                          18 U.S.C § 1956(a)(2)

                                                               :                                                (Money Laundering - 7 Counts)
                          18 U.S.C. § 2
   :                             (Aiding and Abetting)   

           18 U.S.C. § 982
                                                               :                                                (Notice of Forfeiture)    

I N D I C T M E N T

COUNT ONE

(CONSPIRACY)

THE GRAND JURY CHARGES THAT:

INTRODUCTION

1. From in or about November, 1995, and continuing up to in or about

January, 1997, defendant GEORGE ATIYEH resided in Allentown, Pennsylvania, and conducted

a gambling business known as, among other things,"International Casino," "ICSN",
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"Sports/ICSN", "International Casino Race and Sports Book," and "International Casino &

Sports Wagering Network," and International Casino & Sports Wagering Network Limited” 

(hereinafter referred to as "International Casino" or “ICSN”). 

2. At all times relevant to this Indictment, defendant GEORGE ATIYEH

owned, supervised and conducted the operation of International Casino.  Defendant GEORGE

ATIYEH’s supervisory duties consisted of, among other things, hiring and managing employees,

managing record keeping, managing bank accounts, renting telephone lines, and with the

assistance of others known and unknown to the grand jury, collecting payments from bettors,

taking bets, placing advertisements for International Casino in sports publications, and distributing

payouts to bettors. 

3. Between in or about November, 1995, and continuing up to in or about

January, 1997 --

a. International Casino was financed, managed and controlled from its

headquarters at 727-51 North Meadow Street, Allentown, Pennsylvania;

b. Defendant GEORGE ATIYEH maintained a “Sports/ICSN”

account, Account No. 52494915, at the Meridian Bank in the Eastern District of Pennsylvania,

and at CoreStates Bank,  following Meridian Bank’s merger with CoreStates in or about August,

1996 (hereinafter at times referred to as “Meridian/CoreStates”); and

c. International Casino operated in Allentown, Pennsylvania, Canada,

and Antigua, and accepted bets from bettors throughout the United States.  These bets were

accepted through the use of interstate and international telephone lines. 
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d. Interstate and international telephone lines that were utilized

included the following: 

(1) To place a bet, betters were instructed to call telephone

number (800) 430-9310;

(2) To obtain betting “line” information, bettors were 

instructed to call telephone number (800) 411-9310;

(3) To obtain general information regarding International

Casino, establish an account, and request payouts, bettors

were instructed to call telephone numbers (800) 797-4400 

and (215) 329-2238; and 

(4) To place a bet via facsimile transmission, bettors were

instructed to use telephone number (800) 423-9310.

THE CONSPIRACY

4. From in or about November 1995, and continuing up to in or about

January 1997, in the Eastern District of Pennsylvania and elsewhere, defendant 

GEORGE ATIYEH 

did unlawfully, knowingly, and willfully combine, conspire, confederate and agree with others

known and unknown to the Grand Jury, to commit offenses against the United States, that is --

a. to violate Title 18,  United States Code, Section 1084(a),  while

being engaged in the business of betting and wagering, by using wire communication facilities for

the transmission, in interstate and foreign commerce, of bets and wagers and information assisting

in the placing of bets and wagers on sporting events and contests, and for the transmission of wire
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communications which entitled the recipient to receive money and credit as a result of bets and

wagers, and for the transmission of information assisting in the placing of bets and wagers; and

b. to violate Title 18, United States Code, Section 1955 by

conducting, financing, managing, supervising, directing and owning all or part of an illegal sports

gambling business, which was in substantially continuous operation for a period in excess of thirty

days, had a gross revenue of $2,000 on various days during this period, was conducted, financed,

managed, supervised, directed, and owned by five or more persons, and violated the provisions of

the laws of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, namely Title 18, Pennsylvania Consolidated

Statutes, Sections 5514(1), 5514(2), 5514(4) and 5514(5).

OBJECTS OF THE CONSPIRACY

5. The objects of the conspiracy were to make money through the operation

of an illegal gambling business and to avoid apprehension by United States law enforcement

authorities by making it appear that the gambling business was conducted in foreign countries and

therefore not subject to United States’ laws.  

MANNER AND MEANS OF THE CONSPIRACY

6. It was part of the conspiracy that the defendant GEORGE ATIYEH

engaged in an illegal bookmaking business that handled in excess of $1,061,000 in bets between

November, 1995 and January, 1997.

7. It was further part of the conspiracy that this bookmaking business,

operating under the name International Casino, solicited bettors throughout the United States and

Canada to open a wagering account with International Casino.  To open an account, bettors

would be directed to forward money to International Casino through the use of Western Union
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wire transfers, MoneyGram wire transfers, cashier’s checks, money orders and other means, to 

MM in St. John’s, Antigua.

8. It was further part of the conspiracy that International Casino accepted

wagers on sport events, including, but not limited to, college and professional basketball games,

college and professional football games, professional baseball games, professional hockey games,

horse racing, and auto racing. 

9. It was further part of the conspiracy that defendant GEORGE ATIYEH

and International Casino solicited bettors in the Eastern District of Pennsylvania and throughout

the United States by, among other things, maintaining a marketing office in Allentown,

Pennsylvania, advertising in sports publications and magazines published in the United States and

distributed in the Eastern District of Pennsylvania and throughout the United States, mailing

promotional material from the Eastern District of Pennsylvania to bettors in the Eastern District of 

Pennsylvania and throughout the United States, and advertising and promoting its sports betting

operation to United States customers on a web site on the Internet, that is, 

www.iwe.com/intcasino.

10.          It was further part of the conspiracy that defendant GEORGE ATIYEH

employed individuals in Allentown, Pennsylvania to help conduct International Casino's gambling

business.  These individuals communicated from Allentown, Pennsylvania by telephone with

bettors in order to promote and provide information about International Casino, instructed bettors

on how to open accounts so that they could place bets on sporting events, communicated with

bettors who requested payouts, and received postal and bank money orders in order to make

payouts to bettors. 
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11.          It was further part of the conspiracy that defendant GEORGE ATIYEH

employed individuals in Canada to help conduct the offshore portion of International Casino's

gambling business.  These individuals accepted wagers from bettors on sporting events via

international phone calls.

12.          It was further part of the conspiracy that at various times during the

conspiracy, at defendant GEORGE ATIYEH’s direction, telephone betting lines, including 

(800) 430-9310,  were forwarded from Canada to the Eastern District of Pennsylvania and that

subsequently wagers were accepted in the Eastern District of Pennsylvania on various sporting

events.

13.          It was further part of the conspiracy that at various times during the

conspiracy, when betting lines were forwarded from Canada to the Eastern District of

Pennsylvania, defendant GEORGE ATIYEH and others, both known and unknown to the grand

jury, accepted wagers in the Eastern District of Pennsylvania from bettors in Pennsylvania and

elsewhere.

14.          It was further part of the conspiracy that employees of International

Casino, at defendant GEORGE ATIYEH’s direction, accepted wagers by facsimile transmission

in the Eastern District of Pennsylvania and Canada.

15.          It was further part of the conspiracy that defendant GEORGE ATIYEH

employed MM in Antigua to help conduct the offshore portion of International Casino's gambling

business.  MM received funds from bettors via Western Union wire transfers, MoneyGrams,

cashier's checks, money orders, credit cards, and other means, and would then deposit those funds
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into the International Casino account controlled by defendant GEORGE ATIYEH at the

Canadian Imperial Bank of Commerce in Antigua.

16.          It was further part of the conspiracy that when bettors called the

International Casino office in Allentown, Pennsylvania requesting a payout, employees of

International Casino in Allentown, Pennsylvania, at defendant GEORGE ATIYEH'S direction, 

contacted the International Casino office in Canada to obtain verification that sufficient funds

were in a bettor’s account before a payout would be made.

17.          It was further part of the conspiracy that payouts from International

Casino were mailed from the Eastern District of Pennsylvania to individual bettors in the Eastern

District of Pennsylvania and throughout the United States who requested payouts.

18.          It was further part of the conspiracy that International Casino placed

advertisements in various sports publications that were published in the United States, and

distributed in the Eastern District of Pennsylvania and throughout the United States, stating that

International Casino featured "Faxabet" services, that it was "fully licensed," and that its services

"were located in the Caribbean on several British West Indies islands" in order to give the false

appearance that all gambling operations were conducted outside of Pennsylvania when in fact

gambling activity was conducted, managed and supervised in Pennsylvania.

OVERT ACTS

In furtherance of the conspiracy and to effect the objects thereof, the following

overt acts, among others, were committed in the Eastern District of Pennsylvania and elsewhere:

(1)       During a period of time in January, 1996, defendant GEORGE ATIYEH

directed that telephone betting lines be forwarded from Canada to the Eastern District of
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Pennsylvania so that bets on sporting events could be accepted in the Eastern District of

Pennsylvania.

(2)       During a period of time in January, 1996, defendant GEORGE ATIYEH

accepted wagers on sporting events, and supervised others in the acceptance of wagers on

sporting events, at 727-51 North Meadow Street, Allentown, Pennsylvania. 

(3)      During a period of time in April and May of 1996, defendant GEORGE

ATIYEH directed that telephone betting lines be forwarded from Canada to the Eastern District

of Pennsylvania so that bets on sporting events could be accepted in the Eastern District of

Pennsylvania.

(4)       During a period of time in April and May of 1996, defendant GEORGE

ATIYEH accepted wagers on sporting events, and supervised others in the acceptance of wagers

on sporting events, at 727-51 North Meadow Street, Allentown, Pennsylvania. 

(5)      During a period of time in June and July, 1996, defendant GEORGE

ATIYEH directed that telephone betting lines be forwarded from Canada to the Eastern District

of Pennsylvania so that bets on sporting events could be accepted in the Eastern District of

Pennsylvania.

(6)       During a period of time in June and July, 1996, defendant GEORGE

ATIYEH accepted wagers on sporting events, and supervised others in the acceptance of wagers

on sporting events, at 727-51 North Meadow Street, Allentown, Pennsylvania.

(7)      During a period of time in September and October, 1996, defendant

GEORGE ATIYEH directed that telephone betting lines be forwarded from Canada to the
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Eastern District of Pennsylvania so that bets on sporting events could be accepted in the Eastern

District of Pennsylvania.

(8)       During a period of time in September and October, 1996, defendant

GEORGE ATIYEH accepted wagers on sporting events, and supervised others in the acceptance

of wagers on sporting events, at 727-51 North Meadow Street, Allentown, Pennsylvania. 

(9)     On or about September 9, 1996, at approximately 4:35 p.m., KV, a person

known to the grand jury who was an employee of International Casino, had a telephone

conversation over telephone number (800) 797-4400 with an undercover agent of the Federal

Bureau of Investigation located in Philadelphia, Pennsylvania, posing as a potential bettor. 

During that conversation, KV informed the undercover agent how to open an account with

International Casino and how to bet on sporting events through International Casino.

(10)      On or about September 12, 1996, at approximately 3:43 p.m., DB, a

person known to the grand jury who was an employee of International Casino, had a telephone

conversation over telephone number (800) 797-4400 with the undercover agent in Philadelphia,

Pennsylvania, posing as a potential bettor.  During that conversation, DB obtained information

from the undercover agent in order to open an account for him with International Casino.

(11) On or about September 12, 1996, at approximately 4:05 p.m.,  an

individual who was working for defendant GEORGE ATIYEH and International Casino, had a

telephone conversation over telephone number (800) 797-4400 with the undercover agent in

Philadelphia, Pennsylvania, posing as a potential bettor.  During this conversation, the individual

informed the undercover agent that the telephone number to call in order to receive betting line
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information was (800) 411-9310, and the telephone number to call in order to place bets was 800-

430-9310.

(12) On or about September 12, 1996, at approximately 4:21 p.m., an individual

who was working for defendant GEORGE ATIYEH and International Casino, had a telephone

conversation over telephone number (800) 430-9310 with the undercover agent in Philadelphia,

Pennsylvania, posing as a potential bettor.  During that telephone conversation, the individual

provided line information to the undercover agent and accepted a bet on a sporting event from the

undercover agent.

(13)      On or about October 9, 1996, at approximately 5:45 p.m., SO, a person

known to the grand jury who was working for defendant GEORGE ATIYEH and International

Casino, had a telephone conversation over telephone number (800) 430-9310 with the undercover

agent in Philadelphia, Pennsylvania, posing as a potential bettor.  During that telephone

conversation, SO provided line information to the undercover agent and accepted a bet on a

sporting event from the undercover agent.

(14)     On or about October 16, 1996, at approximately 5:15 p.m., an individual

who worked for defendant GEORGE ATIYEH and International Casino, had a telephone

conversation over telephone number (800) 430-9310 with the undercover agent in Philadelphia,

Pennsylvania, posing as a potential bettor.  During that telephone conversation, the individual

accepted a bet on a sporting event from the undercover agent.

(15)      On or about October 30, 1996, in the Eastern District of Pennsylvania, an

individual who worked for defendant GEORGE ATIYEH and International Casino purchased a
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United States Postal Service money order in the amount of $250 payable to the undercover agent

in Philadelphia, Pennsylvania, posing as a bettor.

(16)     On or about October 30, 1996, in the Eastern District of Pennsylvania, an

individual who worked for defendant GEORGE ATIYEH and International Casino sent by United

States mail a United States Postal Service money order in the amount of $250, as well as a

promotional brochure regarding International Casino, to the undercover agent in Philadelphia,

Pennsylvania, posing as a bettor.

(17) On or about November 29, 1996, at approximately 12:09 p.m., an

individual who worked for defendant GEORGE ATIYEH and  International Casino had a

telephone conversation over telephone number (800) 430-9310 with the undercover agent in

Philadelphia, Pennsylvania, posing as a potential bettor.  During that telephone conversation, the

individual provided line information to the undercover agent and accepted a bet on a sporting

event from the undercover agent.

(18) On or about December 12, 1996, at approximately 5:21 p.m., an individual

who worked for defendant GEORGE ATIYEH and International Casino had a telephone

conversation over telephone number (800) 430-9310 with an undercover agent in Philadelphia,

Pennsylvania, posing as a potential bettor.  During that telephone conversation, the individual

provided line information to the undercover agent and accepted a bet on a sporting event from the

undercover agent.

All in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 371.
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COUNT TWO

(CONDUCTING AN ILLEGAL GAMBLING BUSINESS)

THE GRAND JURY FURTHER CHARGES THAT:

From in or about November, 1995 and continuing up to and including in or about

January 1997, in the Eastern District of Pennsylvania and elsewhere, defendant

GEORGE ATIYEH,

together with others known and unknown to the Grand Jury, did unlawfully and knowingly

conduct, finance, manage, supervise, direct, and own all or part of an illegal gambling business as

that term is defined in Title 18, United States Code, Section 1955(b), that is, a gambling business

in violation of the laws of Pennsylvania in that said gambling business --

a.     engaged in bookmaking, in violation of the laws of the                        

Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, Title 18, Pennsylvania Consolidated          

Statutes, Section 5514(1);

b.   occupied 727-51 North Meadow Street, Allentown, Pennsylvania, for the

purpose of receiving, recording and registering bets or wagers, in violation

of the laws of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, Title 18, Pennsylvania

Consolidated Statutes, Section 5514(2);

c. was a custodian of funds wagered and to be wagered, and staked and to be

staked, for gain and  reward, in violation of Title 18, Pennsylvania

Consolidated Statutes, Section 5514(4); and
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d. in which defendant GEORGE ATIYEH, being the occupant of 727-51 

North Meadow Street, Allentown, Pennsylvania, knowingly permitted it to

be used for purposes of violating Sections 5514(1), 5514(2) and 5514(4),

in violation of Section 5514(5),        

and which involved five or more persons who conducted, financed, managed, supervised, directed

and owned all and part of said business, remained in substantially continuous operation for a

period of in excess of thirty days, and had a gross revenue in excess of $2,000 in a single day.

In violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1955.
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COUNTS THREE THROUGH SEVEN

(USE OF WIRE COMMUNICATION FACILITIES IN
CONNECTION WITH BETTING AND WAGERING BUSINESS)

THE GRAND JURY FURTHER CHARGES THAT:

1.      Paragraphs 1 through 3 and 5 through 18 of Count One of this Indictment,

are hereby realleged and incorporated by reference as if fully set forth herein.

2.       On or about the dates and approximate times listed below, in the Eastern

District of Pennsylvania and elsewhere, defendant 

GEORGE ATIYEH, 

being engaged in the business of betting and wagering, knowingly used and caused the use of wire

communication facilities, that is, interstate and international telephone lines between Philadelphia,

Pennsylvania in the Eastern District of Pennsylvania and Canada, for the transmission, in interstate

and foreign commerce, of bets and wagers and information assisting in the placing of bets and

wagers on sporting events and contests, and for the transmission of wire
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communications which entitled the recipients to receive money and credit as a result of bets and 

wagers, and for the transmission of information assisting in the placing of bets and wagers.

COUNT DATE, APPROXIMATE TIME, AND            TO   
CONTENT OF WIRE TRANSMISSION        TEL. NO.                 

THREE September 12, 1996, 4:21 p.m.      (800) 430-9310       
(Provided line information and
accepted a bet on a sporting event)

FOUR October 9, 1996, 5:45 p.m.   (800) 430-9310    
(Provided line information and
accepted a bet on a sporting event)

FIVE October 16, 1996, 5:15 p.m.    (800) 430-9310           
(Accepted a bet on a sporting
event)

SIX November 29, 1996, 12:09 p.m.                        (800) 430-9310
(Provided line information and
accepted a bet on a sporting event)

SEVEN December 12, 1996, 5:21 p.m.     (800) 430-9310           
(Provided line information and
accepted a bet on a sporting event)

In violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1084 and 2.
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COUNT EIGHT

(MONEY LAUNDERING CONSPIRACY)

THE GRAND JURY FURTHER CHARGES THAT:

1.    Paragraphs 1 through 3 and 5 through 18 of Count One are realleged and

incorporated by reference as though fully set forth herein. 

2.     From in or  about November, 1995, until in or about January, 1997, in the

Eastern District of Pennsylvania and elsewhere, defendant 

GEORGE ATIYEH 

did knowingly and willfully combine, conspire, confederate and agree with others known and

unknown to the Grand Jury,

        A.    To conduct financial transactions affecting interstate and foreign

commerce, that is, the purchasing of bank money orders and postal money orders, which involved

the proceeds of a specified unlawful activity,  that is, proceeds from an illegal gambling business

conducted in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1955, as charged in Count Two of

this Indictment, knowing that the property involved in the financial transactions, that is, currency

of the United States and personal checks, represented the proceeds of an unlawful activity, and

knowing that the transactions were: (i) intended to promote the carrying on of said specified

unlawful activity; and (ii) designed in whole and in part to conceal and disguise the nature, source,

ownership, and control of the proceeds of said specified unlawful activity; in violation of Title 18,

United States Code, Section 1956(a)(1); and

        B.    To transport, transmit, and transfer, and attempt to transport, transmit

and transfer, funds from ICSN accounts at the Canadian Imperial Bank of Commerce in St.
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John’s, Antigua that were controlled by defendant GEORGE ATIYEH, to a place in the United

States, that is, to Account No. 52494915 at the Meridian and CoreStates Banks in the Eastern

District of Pennsylvania, through the correspondent bank in New York, the Morgan Guaranty

Trust Company, with the intent of promoting the carrying on of specified unlawful activity,  that

is, an illegal gambling business conducted in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section

1955, as charged in Count Two of this Indictment; in violation of Title 18, United States Code,

Section 1956(a)(2).

MANNER AND MEANS OF THE CONSPIRACY

3.  It was part of the conspiracy that customers of International Casino were

directed to transfer funds to be used for betting through International Casino to MM by means

including, but not limited to, Western Union wire transfer, MoneyGram wire transfer, check and

money order.

                        4. It was further part of the conspiracy that  funds were transferred by wire

from ICSN accounts at the Canadian Imperial Bank of Commerce in St. John's, Antigua, through

the correspondent bank in New York, the Morgan Guaranty Trust Company, to the Meridian and

CoreStates Banks in the Eastern District of Pennsylvania.  The funds were wired to

Meridian/CoreStates Account No. 52494915.

5. It was further part of the conspiracy that employees of International Casino

would cash checks on Account No. 52494915 at the Meridian and CoreStates Banks, and would

then purchase bank money orders at the Meridian and CoreStates Banks, as well postal money

orders at post offices in the Eastern District of Pennsylvania, for the purpose of making payouts

to bettors.
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6. It was further part of the conspiracy that funds that were transferred from

the Canadian Imperial Bank of Commerce in St. John’s, Antigua,  to Account No. 52494915 of

the Meridian and CoreStates Banks in the Eastern District of Pennsylvania, were used to pay the

expenses of the sports bookmaking business, including expenses for an “800" telephone number

service that allowed bettors to place toll-free bets with the sports bookmaking business.

7. It was further part of the conspiracy that among the expenses of the sports

bookmaking business that were paid out of Account No. 52494915 of the Meridian and

CoreStates Banks in the Eastern District of Pennsylvania were charges for a sports “line”

information service.

8. It was further part of the conspiracy that defendant GEORGE ATIYEH

caused International Casino to receive an amount in excess of  $1,003,000 from customers of

International Casino through Western Union wire transfers.  

9. It was further part of the conspiracy that defendant GEORGE ATIYEH

caused International Casino to receive an amount in excess of $58,000  from customers of

International Casino through MoneyGram wire transfers.

10. It was further part of the conspiracy that defendant GEORGE ATIYEH

caused wire transmissions of funds in an amount in excess of  $650,000, from ICSN accounts at

the Canadian Imperial Bank of Commerce in St. John’s, Antigua,  through the correspondent

bank in New York, The Morgan Guaranty Trust Company, to Meridian/CoreStates Bank

Account No. 52494915, in the Eastern District of Pennsylvania.

11. It was further part of the conspiracy that  defendant GEORGE ATIYEH

wrote and caused to be written checks totaling an amount in excess of $115,000, drawn on
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Meridian/CoreStates Account No. 52494915, payable to himself and others known and unknown

to the grand jury, for the purpose of purchasing money orders for payouts to bettors with

International Casino.

12. It was further part of the conspiracy that  defendant GEORGE ATIYEH

caused withdrawals by check from Meridian/Corestates Account No. 52494915, for the purpose

of purchasing money orders for payouts to bettors with International Casino.

13. It was further part of the conspiracy that defendant GEORGE ATIYEH

caused International Casino to make payouts to bettors in the form of postal money orders in an

amount in excess of $125,000.

14. It was further part of the conspiracy that defendant GEORGE ATIYEH

caused International Casino to make payouts to bettors in the form of personal bank money

orders in an amount in excess of $19,000 .

OVERT ACTS

 In furtherance of the conspiracy, and to effect the objects thereof, GEORGE

ATIYEH, and others both known and unknown to the Grand Jury, committed and caused to be

committed the following overt acts, among others, in the Eastern District of Pennsylvania and

elsewhere:

     (1)     On or about the dates set forth below, in the Eastern District of

Pennsylvania, GEORGE ATIYEH caused the following Meridian/CoreStates money orders, in 
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the approximate amounts set forth below, to be purchased.  Each such money order purchase

represents a separate overt act: 

OVERT ACT       DATE   MONEY   AMOUNT   PAYEE
   ORDER #

1(a) May 2, 1996   5948572 $3000 PW

1(b) May 2, 1996   5948574 $621 EF

1(c) May 2, 1996    5948575 $60 MM

1(d) September 3, 1996    9698401 $575 AS

(1e)           October 1, 1996            9698397    $700     TH

(1f)            October 2, 1996            9698381    $700     HL

(1g)            October 3, 1996       9698389    $1,000   BP

(1h)      October 3, 1996       9698396    $500     DS
      

(1i)                   October 4, 1996            9698388             $1,000             DH

(1j)             October 4, 1996            9698385    $500     MM

(1k)             October 4, 1996       9698421    $500     JG

(1l)        October 5, 1996   9698394    $1,000   JG

(1m)        December 16, 1996     9737501    $1,000   TM

(1n)    December 17, 1996   9737483    $700     JL

(1o)        December 17, 1996     9737477    $1,000    JS

(1p)        January 21, 1997           9737476             $750     TA

     (2)     On or about the dates set forth below, in the Eastern District of

Pennsylvania, GEORGE ATIYEH caused the following postal money orders, in the approximate
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amounts set forth below, to be purchased.  Each such money order purchase represents a separate

overt act:

OVERT         DATE  POSTAL   AMOUNT   PAYEE
ACT  MONEY

 ORDER #

(2a) May 2, 1996 64157624831 $700 WC

(2b) May 2, 1996 64157624842 $700 WC

(2c) May 29, 1996 64668028994 $500 TB

(2d) June 13, 1996 64670162872 $500 PB

(2e) June 20, 1996 64155196798 $600 DG

(2f) July 12, 1996 64157674544 $600 TB

(2g) July 24, 1996 64671807148 $600 AW

(2h) August 8, 1996 64157679145 $600 CB

(2i) August 31, 1996 64670569097 $400 EV

(2j) September 5, 1996 65143979752 $500 WC

(2k) October 30, 1996 65144132853 $250 RM

(2l) October 30, 1996 65144132864 $500 EJ

(2m) October 30, 1996 65146069315 $500 EJ

     (3)     On or about the dates set forth below, GEORGE ATIYEH caused the

following wire transmissions of funds, in the approximate amounts set forth below, from the

ICSN accounts at the Canadian Imperial Bank of Commerce in St. John’s, Antigua, that were

controlled by defendant GEORGE ATIYEH, to a place in the United States, that is, to Account

No. 52494915 at the Meridian and CoreStates Banks in the Eastern District of Pennsylvania,
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through the correspondent bank in New York, the Morgan Guaranty Trust Company.  Each such

wire transmission represents a separate overt act:

OVERT               APPROXIMATE DATE OF             AMOUNT OF FUNDS
ACT       TRANSMISSION OR TRANSFER         TRANSMITTED OR TRANSFERRED 

(3a) August 21, 1996 $7,485

(3b) August 22, 1996 $7,485

(3c) August 29, 1996 $14,985

(3d) September 4, 1996 $7,485

(3e) September 5, 1996 $7,485

(3f) September 23, 1996 $7,485

(3g) September 24, 1996 $7,485

(3h) October 1, 1996 $8,985

(3i) October 2, 1996 $8,985

(3j) October 4, 1996 $8,985

(3k) October 23, 1996 $8,985

(3l) October 25, 1996 $8,985

(3m) October 29, 1996 $26,985

(3n) November 12, 1996 $8,985

(3o) November 18, 1996 $8,985

(3p) November 19, 1996 $8,985

(3q) November 27, 1996 $8,985

(3r) November 29, 1996 $8,985

All in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1956(h).
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COUNTS 9 THROUGH 15

(MONEY LAUNDERING)

THE GRAND JURY FURTHER CHARGES THAT:

On or about the dates set forth below, in the Eastern District of Pennsylvania and

elsewhere, defendant

GEORGE ATIYEH

did knowingly and willfully transport, transmit and transfer, and attempt to transport, transmit and

transfer, and cause to be transported, transmitted and transferred,  funds in the approximate amounts set

forth below from the ICSN accounts at the Canadian Imperial Bank of Commerce in St. John’s, Antigua 

that were controlled by defendant GEORGE ATIYEH, to a place in the United States,  that is, to

Account No. 52494915 at the Meridian and CoreStates Banks in the Eastern District of Pennsylvania,

through the correspondent bank in New York, the Morgan Guaranty Trust Company, with the intent to

promote the carrying on of specified unlawful activity, namely illegal gambling activity in violation of

Title 18, United States Code, Section 1955 as alleged in Count Two of this Indictment:

COUNT APPROXIMATE DATE OF    AMOUNT OF FUNDS
       TRANSMISSION OR TRANSFER           TRANSMITTED OR TRANSFERRED

9 October 25, 1996 $8,985

10 October 29, 1996 $26,985

11 November 12, 1996 $8,985
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COUNT APPROXIMATE DATE OF    AMOUNT OF FUNDS
       TRANSMISSION OR TRANSFER           TRANSMITTED OR TRANSFERRED

12 November 18, 1996 $8,985

13 November 19, 1996 $8,985

14 November 27, 1996 $8,985

15 November 29, 1996 $8,985

In violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1956(a)(2)(A) and 2.
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NOTICE OF FORFEITURE

(MONEY LAUNDERING FORFEITURE)

THE GRAND JURY FURTHER CHARGES THAT:

1.  As a result of the violations of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1956 set

forth in Counts 8 through 15 of this Indictment, defendant 

             GEORGE ATIYEH

shall forfeit to the United States of America:

  a.     any and all property constituting, or derived from, proceeds obtained,            

          directly or indirectly, as a  result of the violations of Title 18, United             

          States Code, Section 1956 as charged in Counts 8 through 15 of  this            

           Indictment; and

  b.     Any and all property, real or personal, involved in  the violations of Title       

         18, United States Code,  Section 1956 charged in Counts 8 through 15          

          of this Indictment; 

and any property traceable to such property, including, but not limited to, the sum of $1,061,000.

        2.    If any of the property subject to forfeiture, as a result of any act or omission of

the defendants:

   a.  cannot be located upon the exercise of due diligence;

   b.  has been transferred or sold to, or deposited with, a third party;

   c.  has been placed beyond the jurisdiction of the Court;

   d.  has been substantially diminished in value; or
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   e.  has been commingled with other property which

       cannot be divided without difficulty;

it is the intent of the United States, pursuant to Title 18, United States Code, Section 982(b),

incorporating Title 21, United States Code, Section 853(p), to seek forfeiture of any other

property of the defendant up to the value of the property subject to forfeiture.

All pursuant to Title 18, United States Code, Section 982.

A TRUE BILL:

__________________________________
FOREPERSON

________________________________
PATRICK L. MEEHAN
United States Attorney


